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independent Audifor’s Report

To the Members of
Tata Motors Finance Limited

tformerly krnown as Sheba Properiies Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Crpinion

We have audiicd the fnancial statements of Tats Motors Finance Limited (formerly known as Sheba
Properties Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and
the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the vear then ended and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting pelicies and other explanzatory information.

{n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Acf™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and profit
and other comprehensive income, changes it equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under
section [43(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are frther described in the Audifor s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staiements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“[CAT”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. ’

Key Audit Matters

Key audil matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
ol our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

B S R & Ca {a pastnership fimm with Bapistered Gfice:
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
‘Tata Motors Finance Limited

(formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Description of Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter _ | How the matter was addressed in our audit
Transition date accounting policies

Refer (o the avcounting policies in the Financial Statements. gngficmz!wficcoum;ngP‘o!zr;resw Bamof
preparation” and "Note 4 to the Fingncial Statements: Transition date choices and application”

i Adoption of aew éécounting framework (ind AS) | Cur key audit procedures included:

Effective | April 2018, the Company adopted the Design / controls
¢ indian Accounting Standards {“Ind AS™} notified by !
' the Ministry of Corporate A ffairs with the transition | » Assessing  the design, implementation and

: date of | April 2017, operating effectiveness of key interaal controls

over management’s evaluation of transition date

The following are the major impact areas for the choices and exemptions availed in line with the
Company upon transition: principles under ind AS 101.

- Classification and measurement of financial | * We confirmed the approvals of the Audhi

assets  and  financial liabilities including Committee of the Company for the choices and
assessment of business model exemptions  made by the Company for

- Measurement of loan losses (expected cradit compliance/acceptability under ind AS 101,
losses) <

- Accounting for securitization and assignmenl | Substantive tests
- Accounting for loan fees and costs .
- Common control transaction and goodwill | »  Evaluated management’s transition dale choices
accounting i and exemptions for compliance/acceptability
under Ind AS 101.
The migration to the new accounting framework
{Ind AS} is a complicated process involving | *+ Understood the methodology implemented by
multiple decision points upon transition. [nd AS management to give tmpact on the ransition, |
Y01, First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standard prescribes choices and exemptions for | ¢ Assessed the accuracy of the computations.
first time application of Ind AS principles at the

transition date. *  Assessed areas of significant estimates and
management judgment in line with principies
We identified transition date accounting as a key under Ind AS.

audit marter because of significant degree of
management judgment and application on the areas
noted above,

W




BSR&Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Tata Motors Finance Limited

{formerly known as Sheba Properties Linitec)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

fter

low the matter was addressed in our audit
of financial assets

Charge: Rs.285,86.90 Iakhs for year ended 31 March 2019
Provision: Rs.783,28.20 lakhs at 31 March 2019 o o o
Refer to the aeeounting policies in "Note 3(xviA)(1i) to the Financial Statements: Impairment”, “Note 3(i)
to the Finarcial Statements; Significant Accounting Policies- use of estimates” and "Note 9 and Note 10 (o

Subjective cstimate | Our audit procedures included:

Recognition and measurement of impairment of | Design / controls
financial assets involves significant management

judgement. *  Evaluation of the appropristeness of the

impainment principles based on the requirements |
With the applicability of Ind AS 109 Financial of Ind AS 109, our business understanding and |
fnstruments, credit loss assessment is now based on ! industry practice.

expected  credit  loss ("ECL™) model. The
Company’s impairment allowance is derived from ! ¢ Understanding management’s processes, systoms |

estimates including the historical default and loss and controls implemented in  relation o |
ratios. Management exercises judgement in | impairment allowance process. i
determining the quantum of loss based on a range of !
factors. 1+ Assessing the design and implementation of key |
internal financial controls and entity level controls i
The most significant facrors are: | (including controls arcund information provided
by the Company)} over loan irpairment process :
i - Segmentation of loan book used to calculate the impairment charge. ’
i - Loan staging eriteria *  We used our modelling speciatist to test the model
methodology and reasonableness of assumptions
- Calculation of probability of default / loss used.

given defaull
*  Testing of managemeni review controls over
- Consideration  of  probability  weighted measurement of “impairment allowances and
scenartos  and  forward logking  macro- disclosures in financial statements.
economic factors

! Substantives tests
: There is a significant dependency on the various
- data inputs to be considered in the ECL modet. This | *  We focus on appropriate applicalion of accounting

increases the risk of completeness and accuracy of principles, validating compieteness and accuracy
the data that has been used to create assumptions in of the data and reasonableness of assumptions
the model. used in the model.

o Test of details over caleulation of impairment
allowance for assessing the completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data.




BSR & Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Repert (Continued)

Tata Motors Finance Limited

(formerly knawn os Sheba Properties Limited)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of financia! assets (Continued)

Provision: Rs.783,28.20 lakhs at 31 March 2019

Charge: Rs.285,86.90 lakhs for year ended 31 March 2019

> Model caleulations were tested through re-
performance where possible,

* The appropriateness of management’s judgments
was alse independently reconsidered in respect of
caleulation  methodologies, segmentation, the
period of historical loss rates used, loss emergence
periods, economic forward looking factors and the

valuation of recovery assets and coilateral,

ey audit aiter

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

Information technology (‘1T°)

IT systems and controls

The Company’s key financial accounting and
reporting processes are highly dependent on the
automated controls in information systems, such
that there exists a risk that gaps in the 1T control
environment could result in the financial accounting
and repotting records being materially misstated.
The Company uses three primary systems for its
! financizl reporting.

Bue to the large transaction volumes and the
increasing challenge to protect the inlegrity of the
Company’s systems and data, cyber security has
become more significant.

We have focused on user access management,
change management, interface controls and system
application controls over key financial accounting
and reporting systems.

. General IT controls / application controls and user |

Cur audit procedures to assess the 1T system access
management includsd the following:

2CCESS Mmanagement

°  Wetested a sample of key controls operating aver
the information technology in relation to financial
accounting and reporting systems, including
system access and system change management,
program development and computer operations.

* We tested the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls over user access management
which includes granting access rights, new user

creation, removal of user rights and preventative |

controls designed to enforce segregation of duties.

¢ Foraselected group of key controls over financial
and reporting system, we independently
performed procedures to determine the operating

etfectiveness of application controls. For these |
controls that were changed during the year, we |

tested the standard change management process.

i T We evaluated the design, implementation and

operating effectivenzss of the significant aceounts
refated IT automated controls which are relevant
to the accuracy of system caleulation, and the
consistency of data transmission.




BSR&Co LLP

independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Tata Motors Finance Limited

(formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

| Key audit matter
i Information technology (Continued)

. How the matter was addressed in our audit

E + Other areas that were independently assessed |
1

support  did not  have access to  change
applications, the operating system or databases in
the production environment, )

included password policies, system |
configurations, system interface controls, controls
over changes to applications and databases and |
that business users, developers and production |

" Key audit matter | How the matter was addressed in our audit

Assessment of Deferred Taxes on unabsorbed losses
Refer lo the accounting policies in “Noie 3(1vj to the Financial Statements: Income Taxes”. "Nate 3(ij to the

Financial Statements: Deferred Tax Assets”
Subjective estimate Cur audit procedures included:

The recognition of a deferred tax asset in respect of | « W understood and tesied key controls over the

tax losses is permitted only to the extent that itis production and approval of the [orecast laxable
{ probable that future taxable profits will be profits used to support the recognition of deferred
available to wilise the tax losses carried forward. tax assels.

* We reviewed the history of brought forward
unabsorbed tax losses of the Company. We
reviewed the Company’s actual performance vis-

Further, when there is a history of unabsorbed tax
i losses, deferred tax asset is recognised only to the
i extent of the Company having sufficient taxable
temporary differences or convincing evidence to
support that there will be sufficient taxable profit
against which the tax losses can be absorbed.

We discussed with management their basis and
assumptions in respect of convincing evidence to
support that there will be sufficient taxable profit
o absorb the tax losses.

Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies- use of estimates and judgement” and “Note 12 to the |

a-vis their budgets for the current and past years. |
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Independent Auditer’s Report (Continued)
Tata Motors Finance Limited

(formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited)

Other Information

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annuel report, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financia! statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, considsr whether the other information is malterially inconsistent swith
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. [f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a trus
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit / loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standerds (“Ind AL specified under section 133 of the
Act. This respensibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and  design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
maierial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sa.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

W
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Tata Motors Finance Limited

(formerly known as Sheba Properties Limiled)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecenomic decisions of users taken
ou the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audil in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dus to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive (o those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentaticns, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(f) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such conirols. ‘

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reaspnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. 1f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future cvents or conditions may cause the
Company to cedse to continue as a going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contro! that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a staterent that we have complied with relevant
sthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Tata Motors Finance Limited

(formerly known as Sheba Properties Lintiled)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report uniess law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public intergst benefits of such
communication.

(Gther matter

The transition date opening balance sheet as at | April 2017 included in these [nd AS Fnancial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose
report for the year ended 31 March 2017 dated 19 May 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adepted by the
Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”} issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143 (113 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement.on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

{A)  Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} [nour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d} [nour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act,

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2} of the Act.

£} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B,
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Tata Motors Finance Limited

(Formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited;

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements (Continned)

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rufes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us;

i.  The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigation as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
g and Protection Fund by the Company; and

tv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have

not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year
ended 3 March 2019,

(C)  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the currant year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess
of the fimit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by
us. : :

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

. é/ /

Manoj Kumir Vijai
Mumbati Pariner
6 May 2019 Membership No.046882
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Tata Motors Finance Limited
{formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited)
Anunexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report - 31 March 2019

(Referred to in *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement” section of our report of even
date)

We report that;

i {a} The Company has maintained proper records showing futl particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets
over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no materiai discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{c) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable propertics
are held in the name of the Company except for the details given below:

Particulars 1 Gross Block | Net Blockas | Remarks ' T
ason 3l on 3l March

! March 2019 2019 (Rs in

{Rs in Lakhs) Lakhs)

“Residential 6148 : 3%.13 The title desds are in the name of TML Financial
lat in WNilgiri ; Services Limited which is the erstwhile nanme of
Upavan = Co- present day TMF Holdingg Limited<(lhe parent
operative enlity of the Company ). The name of the parent

; tlousing. enitity changed from TML Financial Services |
Society Limited to Tama Motors Finance Limited ‘
Limited {TMFL) in ihe year 2006 and further changad

from TMFL to T™MEF Holdings Limited in the |
year 2017, ;
This asset was acquired puesuant to & Scheme of
arrangement for transfer of business undertaking

; (Scheme) under section 391 to 394 of the

i Companies Act 1936 between the Company and

i its parcnt entity which pursuant to the scheme

H approved by Natienal Company Law Tribunal

! have vested into the Company.

ii. The Company is in the business of lending and consequently does not hold any physicat

inventories. Accordingly paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicabic to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any
foans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partaerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingiy,
paragraph 3 (ifi} of the Order is not appiicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
foans 7 guarantees or security provided in connection with any loan which have been given
to directors or to any other persen in whom the director is interested, therefore the provisions
of section 185 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. According to information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the previsions of section 186 of
the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted.
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Tata Motors Finance Limited
(formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report - 31 March 2019 (Continted)

v, The Company is a non-banking finance company and consequently is exempt from provision

of sectic

mn 73 te 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there

under. Accordingly paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Vi, The Cer

itral Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-

scetion (1) of section 148 of the Act in respect of the services rendered by the Company.

Accordingly, paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
vil. (a} Agcording to information and explanaticns given to us and on the basis of our
© examination of the books of account, and records of the Company, amcunts
deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, goods and service
tax, value added fax, cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not
have any dues on account of sales tax, wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise
and value added tax. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, etployees state insurance,
income-tax, goods and service tax, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from
the date on when they become payable.
(b According to the information and explanation given to us, following dues have not
been deposited by the Company on account of dispute:
E- Name of the statute Nature | Forum where dispufé Period to i Amount ! Netofamount
: of dues : is pending which it relates ;  involved paid under
: (Rs. in profest*
! Lakhs) i {Rs. in Lakhs)
Andira Pradesh Value | High Courtof Judicature | .Y 2007-08 to 1.005.28 67019 ;
Value Added Tax added at tydcrabad for the 2012-13
Act, 2003 tax state of Telengana and
("VAT") | the statc  of Andhra !
Pradzsh i
Anchra Pradesh Penalty | High Courl of Judicalure | F.Y 2G07-08 to L 100528 100528
Value Added Tax on VAT | al Hyderabad for the 2012-13 i
AcL,20035 state  of Telengana and
the statlc  of Andhra I
Pradesh
Andhre Pradesh VAT High Court of Judicature | F.Y 20(3-1410 | 2.213.49 1,475.66
Value Added Tax at Hyderabad for the 2016-17
Aet, 2003 state of Telengana and
the state  of Andhra
Pradesh
Andhra Pradesh Penalty | High CourtofJudicature { F.¥Y 2013-14 10 2,213.49 2.213.49
Value Added Tax on VAT | at Hyderabad [or the 2016-17
Acl, 2003 state  of Telengana and
the state  of Andhra l
Pradesh
West Bengal Value VAT Supreme Court of India | FY 2007-08 and 384.9 NIl
Added Tax Act, 2005 Y 201142
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Tata Motors Finance Limited

(Jormeriy known as Sheba Properties Lintited)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report - 31 March 2019 (Continued)

viil,

xi

*The Company has deposited amount under protest,

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of foans or borrowings to financial institutions or banks or
debenture holders during the year. During the year Company did not have any loans or
borrowings from the Government.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has applied money raised from the terin loans during
the year for the purposes for which they were raised other than temporary deployment
pending application of proceeds. Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer including debt instruments during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, no materiat fraud by the Compauy or on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to tnformation and explanations given to us and based on cur examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid / provided the managerial remuneration
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) is not applicable to the Company.

| Name of the statute | Nature & Forum where uclispute ! Period to o Amount | Net of a ;
! of dues ; is pending which it refates | involved paid under i
: : (Rs.ip protest®
| Lakhsy | (Rs.in Lakhs)
Tharkhand Value VAT Ioint Commissioner (A) | F.Y 201617 24.28 2428
Added Tax sharkhand Commercial
Act 20 . Tax
Madhya Pradesh Catry @ Appeilate Autharity, FY 2013-14 7942 4765
Value Added Tax Tax j Bhopat
Act 2006 i H
B R N ) ,
Utlar Pradesh Value VAT { Commercial tax | FY 20G7-08 and .00 NIL
Added Tax Act, 2008 ; ; Tribunat Licknow 2008-09
(Appes)
I“m;zm;ul\wc}lﬁ@w‘ﬂ T Serviee Centrgl  Excise  and | January 2012 o | 17477 NIL
Tax Service Tax Appellate March 2013
Tribunal  ("CESTATS
| Mumbai
Finanes Act, 1994 Service | CESTAT Mumbai Anpril 2006 to 323.33 488.92
Tax March 2015
Finance Act, 1994 | Service | CESTA I Mumbai April 2008 to 5.486.45 524811
Tay March 2013
Finance Act, 1994 Service | Commissioner  (A), | fuly 2012 1o 39.27 66.22
Pax Service tax, Mumbai March 2016




BSRE&Co. LLP

Tata Motors Finance Limited

(formerly knows as Sheba Properties Limited)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report - 31 March 2019 (Continued)

xil

it

xiv.

XY.

Xvi.

g

Mumbat

I our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
§77 and 188 of the Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has made preferential allotinent of equity shares and
private placement of Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares during the vear under
seview and in our opiinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
requirements of section 42 of the Act have been complied with and amount raised have been
used for the purpases for which the funds has been raised.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash fransactions with
directors or persons cormected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is registered, as
required under section 45 1A of the Resarve Bank of India Act, 1634 and it has obrained
certificate of registration,

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Manoj Kumar Vijai
Partner

6 May 2019 Membership No. 046882



BSR&Co LLP

Tata Motors Finance Limited

{Formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited)

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of
Tata Motors Finance Limited [formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited]

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

(Referred to in paragraph ! under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata Motoes
Finance Limited [formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited] (“the Company™) as of 31 March
2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date,

{n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financia! controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial staternents criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia (“the Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference io
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
wternal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, preseribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

W

e,
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BSR&Co. LLP

Tata Motors Finance Limited
(Formerly fmown as Sheba Properties Limited)

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of
Tata Motors Finance Limited (formerly known as Sheba Properties Limited)
(coniinued)

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

Ouraudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financiai controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a4 material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the asscssment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s iaternal financial contrels with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internat financial contrels with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and [(airly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the cormpany; and (3) provide reasonabie assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statemenis

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference 1o financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

ForBSR & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Manoj Kumar Vijai
Mumnibai Partner
& May 2019 Membership No. 046882



TATA MOTORS EINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED] (CIN - Ud45200MH1989PLLOS0444)

Balanca Shaet as at March 31, 2019

{Zin lakhs)
Particulars Notes Asat Asat As at
| March 31, 2018 fiarch 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
H A3SSETS
1 Financial assats
{a) Cashang cash equivalents, 5 700,79.63 189,05.98 215,45.00
{b} Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents & 977,83.10 645,77 .61 573,45.40
j{c} Derivative finangial instruments 15 1,17.79 - -
{dt} faceivables
i Trage receivables 7 33,87.57 221293 6,60.95
ii. Otherreceivables a3 8,90.80 1,53.58 7,35.37
fa} Loans 9 29995,56.80 21543,79.85 16481,85.98
{f} invastments 10 588,83.79 1745254 273,18.75
{zi Cthar financial assets it 138,90.37 18,58.27 21,85.23
32445,89.95 21595,30.74 1757%,76.59
2 Mon-financial assets
Hal Current tax assets (net} 70,98.68 12,62.52 §,64.15
ib} Deferred tax assets (net) 12 175,31.19 109,31.19 -
e Proparty, plant znd equipment 13 93,44.63 43,37.93 13,33.,49
(t} Capitab work-in-prograss 26.84 51.30 ' -
(e} Otaer intangible assats 13A 4,35.00 5,18.10 1,56.77
i{f} Other non-financial assets 4 121,95.32 42,41.84 75,82.46
471,31.66 213,42.88 107,37.31
Total assets 32917,21.61 22808,83.62 17632,14.00 S
i LIABILITIES GND EQUITY
i1 Financial liahitities
{p} Derivalive financial instruments 1s 2,20.85 - -
i) Tayables
{i} Trade payables 16
- total outstanding dues of miceo enterprises and smali enterprisas - . -
- total outstanding dues of creditors othar than micro enterprises and small enterpricas 236,58.74 134,84.26 182,26.45
fiiy Other payahbles
- tatal cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small anterprises - - -
- tutal vutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 42,71.78 485,50.20 43,35.63
fc} Deht cecurities - 17 9328,45.12 9452,51.35 6854,35.58
Hel} Rorrowings (Qther than debt securitias) 1z 17933,78.96 9041,73.84 . 7553,29.92
Sel Suberdinated liabifities 19 2002,54.92 1751,81.80 1501,75.08 |-
E:f: Qther financials kzbilities 20 220,76.40 225,41,79 209,02.81 2
29762,16.77 20663,83.24 16343,15.45
;& Non-financial iabiiities
{a} Corrent tax iiabilities (net) 51.65 8,02.41 57.80
th} Frovisions 21 124,21.37 120,79.30 . 121,63.31
{c] Orber pon-financial liabilities 22 58,55.54 59,32.86 12,8483
183,28.56 138,14.57 135,05.78
X Eguity .
{z}) Equity share capital 23 583,84,69 538,73.42 491,49.62
{h} Other equity 2382,91.59 1413,12.39 .717,432.80
2966,75.28 1856,85.81 1208,92.82
Toral Hakilities and equity 32917,21.61 22808,83.62 17687,1a.60

S 3teempnnying notes forming part of the finranciat statements {1 to 43}

Ag per our repod of even date attached
ForBSR & Co LiP

Chartered Accountants

Firnwkemstration Number: 101248W,W.100022

Minnaj fu
Paripai
Mienrership No. 046882

Bl

Place @ Mumbai
Data: May 06, 2015 -

For and on bebalf of the Roard of Directors

’
W
Nass unjes

Chairman
{DIN - 00010180}

J

P.B. Bafafp -7 |*
Director
{DIN - 02762983)

i
Sa mrav\gpta/

Chinf Executive Officer

Uirector
{DIN - 00273538)

Ao =g

nand Bang
Chief Financial Officar

Viray i g
LGP SECTEETY

Place: Murabai

Date: May 08, 2019



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED} {CIN - U45200MH1589PLC050444]

Statermnent of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Xin lakhs)
ieul Not For the year ended Far the year anded
o
Particulars es March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from aperations
{2} Interestincomea 25 2993,04.91 2250,26.08
{b) Dividend income 3,55.09 4,05.80
{c} Rentalincome 11,14.04 1,62.40
{d)} Netgain on fair valua changes 26 17,36.26 11,79.48
{e) Otherfees and service charges 104,80.07 76,85.60
I Total Revenue from operations 3135,90.37 2344,69.36
1 Qther ingome 27 312, 58,81 99,45.05
W Totalincome {1 + i} 3248,48.98 2444,18.481
W Expenses:
{a} Finance cost 28 2040,57.44 1416,54.47
{b} Impairment of financial instruments and othar assets 29 285,85.90 104,95.47
{c} employze benefits expensas 30 284,70.55 2558723
{4} Deprecistion and amortization 13 16,7843 12,54.78
{2} Other expensas 31 482,67.90 445,66.34
Total expenses 3110,61.32 2235,58.29
v Profit before exceptional items and tax [Ui - 1v) 137,87.66 208,60.12
V1 Exceptionalitems . -
Vit Profit before tax {V - Vi) 137,87.65 208,60.12
Vill  Tax expense / [incame)
Current tax 12 - {18,99.46)
pefarred tax 12 [65,00.00) {44,49.35)
Total tax expense {66,00.00) [63,48.81}
DX Profit for the year from continuing operations {Vil - ViIl) 203,87.56 272,08.93
X profit for the year 203,87.66 272,08.93
xI Other comprahensive income
A i Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeasurements of the definad benefit plans 4,02.03 6,86.79
b. Equity Instrumeants through Other Comprehensive lacome 5,27.67 5,32.86
fi. Income tax relating to ftems that will net be reclassified to profit or loss < - -
Subtotal (A) 9,29.70 12,19.65
B i Itemsthat will be reciassified to profit or lass
3. Gains and (losses) in cash flow hadges 3,77.10) -
Subtotal {B} {3,77.10) -
Other Comprehensive Income (A + B} 5,52.60 12,19.65
Xit  Total comprehensive incomae for the year 209,40.28 284,28.58
X!l Earnings per equity share of ¥ 100 each
Basic (in Rs.} 37.65 54.23
Diluted {in Rs.) 25.86 42,19

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1 to 43)

A3 per our report of even date attached
For83SR &Co. LipP

Chartered Accountants

Registratign Number: 101248W/AV-100022

Vijai
Fartner
Membership No. 046882

Placs : Mumbai
Date: May 06, 2018

e b ——

T‘omaany Becret ary

‘Chairman Direct:

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

ﬁ%- calba

Nags njes Vedik

{DIN - 00010180)
¥

"
P.8. Balaji Bx/ Syaf Meni

Director Director
{DIN - (i {DIN - 00273598)

Samirat G p/ Mﬂg

Chigf ERetutive Officer Chief Financial Office

{DIN - [}0033808)

- 2
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai

Oate: May 0§, 2019



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED} [CiN - U45200MH1389PLC030444)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2012

{Xin lakhs)
particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2019 31, 2613
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the year e 137,87.66 208,60.12
Adjustments far:
Interast income on loans, deposits & investments {2999,04,91) {2250,26.08}
Interest expensas and other finance costs 1372,65.26 843,12.98
Dividend incorne (3,55.09} {4,05.80)
Giscounting charges/premium on Commerdial paper & Zero coupen bonds 667,92.18 573,41.4%
Gain on sale of investments (35,70.52) {8,96.05}
MTM on Invastments measured at fair value through profit or loss {1,65.74) {2,83,43}
Provision for doubtful loans (net of writeoff) 285,38.83 92,30.35
Provision for doubtful loens and advances [others) |66.49) 12,65.12
Provisien for diminution in the value of Investment 3,14.55 -
Provision for consumer disputes 2,67.01 {18.97)
Provision for indirect taxes - 6.87
Depreciation and amortisation expense 16,78.49 12,5478
Loss on sala of proparty, plant & equipments {including write off 12.40 1,30.70
Balances written back {12,66.86) {31,54.90}
Qperating cash flow before working capital changes and discounting charges (548,73.23) (533,83.02)
Movements In working capital
Trade payables 114,41.34 (35,97.29)
Other payables {3,78.42) 4,14.57
Other financiai fiabilitles {22,11.83) 61,07.94
Other non financial iabilities (77.32} 45,48.23
Trade receivabiles (11,74.73} {1%,51.97)
Other receivables {7.37.25} 5,81.82
Other financial assels 44402 3,58.84
Pravision for empioyee benefit schemes 73.08 {71.71)

Loans

Investments considerad as ¢radit facilities

Cther non financial assets

Increase/(decrease) in derivatives not designated as hedges

Current taxes paid (net}
interest expenses and other finance costs paid
interest income received on loans, deposits and investments

Discounting charges/premiwm on Commerciai paper & Zero coupon bonds paid

Net cash from/{used) in oparating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

{8560,32.76}
{522,75.70}

{5135,86.86)

{70,06.78) 32,59.84
{1,17.79) -

[9729,26.3%) {5569,15.51)
(65,86.92) 144,36.10)
{1373,53.17) {894,73.32)
2911,90.96 2232,56.84
{682,02.23) {533,85.53}
(8938,77.75) (4809,57.82)

Payments far property, plant & eguipments (including CWIP) {73,29.88) {32,57.85)
Proceeds from sale of progerty, plant & equipments 41,16 34.78
Payments for intangible assets {2,79.51) {10,78.54}
Purchase of mutual fund units {17481,10.00; {8956,05.00)
Redemption of mutual fund units 17456,80.52 a060,01.13
Investment in Trust securities (20.86} {i16.86)
realisation on distribution from Trust securities - 29.82
Investment in ecuity shares - (4,61.65)
Proceeds from sale of equity shares - 16,21.16
Dividend income 3,55.09 4,05.80
Deposits/restricted deposits with banks (435,59.95) (121,65.84)
Realisation of deposits/restricted daposits with banks 163,54.47 49,33.63
Net cash from/{used) in investing activities {388,68.96} 4,52.48
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share isste expenses {4,58.20) {83.60}
Broceeds from issus of equity share capital 300,00.00 300,00.00
proceads from issue of Cornpulsory convertible preference shares £96,00.00 300,00.00
Praceeds from Debt securities 26503,19.33 19702,95.04
Repaymant of Debt securities {26620,25.46} (17137,51.64)
Proceads from Subordinated liahliities 250,00.00 250,00.00
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securlties) 29484,33,55 8611,78.83
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt sacurities) (20662,29.69) {7179,54.51)
Dividend paid . {107,15.17) (68,05.80)
Net cash from/{used} in fin vit 9836,20.36 4778,66.32
Net increase / [decreaselin cash'and cash'eqilivalénts [A +B + Q) §11,73.65 | {25,39.02}




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LINITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED) (CIN - U45200MH1989PLC050444)

Cash Flow Staternent for the year ended March 31, 2018

(% in {fakhs})
. For the year ended March | For the year ended March
Particulars
31,2019 31,2018
Cash znd cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 185,05,98 215,45.00
Cash and cash equivaients at the and of the year 700,79.63 189,05.98
Net increase [ [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 511,73.65 {26,39.02}
Changes in fiabilities arlsing from financiag activities:
{Rin lakhs}
Particulars Borrowlings

Balances as at April 0%, 2017

15809,40.55

Cashflow changes - inflow/{outflow} 3762,71.40
Amortisation / EIR adjustrnents 520,95.06
Batances 25 at March 31, 2018 20253,07.01
Cashflow changes - inflow/{outfiow) 8325,92.81
Amoertisation / EIR adjustments 685,79.09
Balaaces as at March 31, 2012 29264,78.51

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1 to 43}

Note: Finance costs has bean considered as arising from operating activities in view of the nature of the Company's businass.

As per ourrepart of even date attached
ForBSR & Co, LLP
Chartared Accountants

Partner
Membership No, 046882

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 08, 2018
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman

{DIN - GO010180}
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AP

P.B. Balaji ﬁ(
Director v

{DIN 162762983)

LS
Samrat X a/

Chj fExequ.we Officer

Vingy e 02

CompEy ey

Place: Mumbai
Bate: May 08, 2019
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Director
{DIN - 00273598}

Chief Financiat Officer
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TATAMOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED] {CIN - U45200MH1889PLC050444)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019

3

2.1

1.2

2.3

{1

Company Information

Tata Motors Finance Limited {"the Company”} is 2 public limited Company incorparated and domiciled in India and has its registered office
in Mumbal, India. The Company is registered as a Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Nen-Deposit Accepting or Holding)
Company {"NBFC"} under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India, Act 1934 {"RBi") with effect from March 04, 1998. The Company is a
subsidiary of TMF Holdings Limited {Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Umited}, With effect from June 30, 2017, the nama of the
Company has changed to Tata Motors Finance Limited from Sheba Properties Limited.

The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities providing vehicle financing through its wide network all sver India.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 06, 2019.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compifance

in accordance with the notification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs , the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards
{referred to as "Ind AS"} notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act'} read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rule 2015 as amended, from April 01, 2018 and the effectiva date of such transition is April 01, 2017. Such transition has baen
carried out in.accordance with ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards from arstwhile Accounting Standards notified
under Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 {as amended) and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of india {'RBI) {eollectively
referred to as the 'Previous GAAPY). The Company has presented a reconciliation from the presentation of financial statements undar
Previous GAAP to Ind AS of Shareholders’ equity as at March 31, 2018 and April G1, 2017 and of the total cemprehensive income for the
year ended March 31, 2018. Refer Note 4 for the details of first- time exemptions availed and an explanation for the impact of transition
from pravious GAAP to ind AS on the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash ffows.

These financial statements for the year ended March 21, 2019 are the first financial statements of the Company prepared undar in

accordance with Ind AS g5 notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {the “Act”}.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of each reportiag period as explained in the accounting policies below.

<

Presentation of financial statenients
The Company is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Company as defined in Companies {Indian Accourting Standards)
{Amendment) Ruies, 2016. Purssiant to Ministry of Corporate Affa'rs ("MCA") notification on October 11, 2018 of ind AS compliant Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013 dealing with format of presentation of financial statements for Non- Banking Financial Companies, the
Company has complied with the requirements of presentation of the financiaf statements in accordance with the sforesaid Schedule I
specific to Non-Banking Financial Company. ’

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have haen
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwisa stated.

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS reguires management to make judpments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabitities and disclosures of contingent Habilitias at the
date of these financiai statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from
thess estimatas. .
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period In which the estimates is revised and future period affacted.
tn particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and criticat judgments in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in following notes :
8) Note 3 {xv)- and 40 impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model
b} Note 3{vii} and 3{viit)- Useful lives of property, plant and equipmant,
¢} Note 3{xi} and 36 Measurement of zssets and obligations of defined benefit emploves plans.
d} Note 3{lvi and 12- Recognition of deferred tax assets.
e) Note 3(xii}- Measurement and recognition of provisions and contingencies,
ft Note 3{xvii} and 39- Falr value measurement of financial instruments,
g) Note 35- Discié3tire:of contingant Habilities,

S Gy,
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TATA MOTORS FNANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED) (CIN - U452G0MH1983PLCO50444)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{ii}

it}

fiv}

{v}

{vi)

Revenue recognition

income on loans arising from financing activities

Interest income frem loans arising out of the financing activity is recognised using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

The effective interast rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts {including all fees/service charges and incentives
paid and received that form an integral part of the effective jnterest rate, transaction costs {l.e. agent's commission/fees) and other
premium or discounts) through the expected life of the loans arising out of the financing activities.

Interest income
Interest income en investments and terrn deposits are accruad and recognised in income statement using the effective interest method
{EIR].

Bividend income

Cividend income is recognised in the income statement on tha date when the Company's right to reteive the payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of dividend can be reliably
measurad.

Fareign currency .

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions In foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities are re-measured into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date,
Exchange differences are racognised in the income statement except to the extent, exchange differences which are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on forelgn currency borrowings, are caplialised as part of borrowing tosts.

Income Taxes

income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income Lax expense is recognised in the statement of profit & loss except whean
they relate to items that are recognised cutside the statement of profit and loss {whether in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity}, in which case tax is also recognised outside the statement of profit and foss.

Current income taxes are determined basad on raspective taxable income of Company and tax rules applicable for respective tax
jurisdictions.

Ceferred tax assets and liabilities aresrecognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of
assets and liabifities and their respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are «computed separately. Deferred tax sgsets are recognised to the extent that it ts proBable that future
taxable income will be avallable against which the daductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and
unused tax credits could be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or
the fiabifity is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have heen enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheat date,

Current and deferred tax assets and lizbilities are offset when there is a tagally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax fabilities and when they relate to income taxeas Jevied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settla its current and
deferred tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are shart-term {three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly figuld investrents that are readily
convertible Intc cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing profit for the vear by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potentiat shares, except
where the result would be anti-dilutive.




TATA MOTORS FINANCE UMITED {farmerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED] (CIN - U25200MH 1989PLCD50444)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{vii)

{viii)

Property, Plant and equipment {PPE}

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less aceurnulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes
purchase price, non-refundable taxes and levies and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its location and working
condition for its intended use.

The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that the economic benefits assaciated with the item will flow
to the Company in future periods, and the cost of the item can be measured raliably. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been putinto
operations, such as repairs and maintenance expenses, are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal ar when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
assets. Any gain or loss, arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE, is determined as the difference between the sales proceads
and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and aquipment under installation/under development as at the reporting date.

Depreciation is pravided os the straight-ne method over the useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usege, operating
conditions, past histery of replacement and anticipated technological changes.

Schedule I} to the Companies Act 2013 ('schedule’) prescribes the useful livas for various class of assets. For certain class of assets, based on
technical avaluation and assessment, Management believes that, the useful lives adopted by it reflects the periods over which these assets
are expected to be used. Accordingly for those assets, the useful lives estimated by management are different from thosa prescribed in the
Schedule. Management's estimates of the useful lives for various class of PPE are as given below:

Type of Assat Estimated useful life
Buliding 12 & &) years

Data Processing Machines 3years

Furniture & Fixture 5to 10vears

Office Equipment 2to Wyears
Vehicles dvyears

Vehicles On Operating Lease {4to Syears

The useful lives and method of depreciation is reviewad at least at each year-end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in
accounting estimates. . .
Depreciation on additions is provided an a prb-rata basis from the menth of installation or acquisition. Depreciation on deductions/
disposals is provided on 2 pro-rata basis upto the month preceding the month of deduction/disposal,

However, leasehold improvements and PPE locited in leasehold premises are depreciated on a straight-line mathod cver shorter of their
respective useful lives or the tenure of the lease arrangement.

Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/~ are expensed off at the time of purchase,

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is its fair value at the date of acgulsition. Foliowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

Intangible assets with finite fives are’amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisatien period and the amortisation method for an intangible assat with 1 finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each raporting period. Changes In the expected useful life or the expacted pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to medify the amortisation peried or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statemeant of
Profit and Loss unless such axpenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful tives,

Intangible assets and their useful fives are as under

Type of asset |Estimated useful life
Software 5years

Gains or lasses arising from de-recognitian of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised,




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED} (CIN - U45200MHI983PLCOS0A44)

MNotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(ix}

{i)

Leases
At the inception of 2 lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either 2 finance l2ase or an operating lease, based on the substance of the
lease arrangement,

(A} Assets taken on operating lease- Company as a lessee .

Leases in which a significant partion of the risks and rewards of dwnership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as
operating leases, Under operating leases, the feased assets are not racognized on the Company’s balance sheet.

Payments made under operating leases {net of any incentives received from the tessor} are charged to profit or ioss on straight-ling basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expacted inflationary cost increases.

{B) Assets given on operating lease- Company as & lessar
Assets given on operating lease are included in fixed assets. Lease income is fecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual
basis. Costs including depreciation are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Non financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company assasses whether there s any indication that any property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets with finite lives may be impaired. if any such impairment exists the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determiine the
extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of zn individua! asset, the Company estimates the
recoverzble smount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use, In assessing value in use, the estimatad future cash fows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money and
the 7isks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not peen adiusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be fess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognisad immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Employee benefits

{A} Short term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term emplovee banefits expectad to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is
recognised during the period when the emplayee randers the service. These benefits include safaries and performance incentives/bonuses
which are expected te occur within twelve months after the end o the period in which the employae renders the refated services.

{B) Post Employmeant/retirement benefit Plans

{1} Definad contribution plans

For provident fund and superannuation fund, Company does not carry any further cbiigations, apart from the contributions made.
Payments/contributions to the Company’s defined contribution plans are accounted for on an accrual basis {i.e. when employees have
rendered the service entitling them to the contribution) and are recognised as an axpanse in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{a} Provident fund

The employees are entited to receive benefits under provident fund, where both, the employees and the Company, make manthiy
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ basic salary. The contribution Is paid ta the fund managed by Tata
Motors Limited {ultimate parent Company), except that the empleyer's contribution towards pension fund is paid to the Regional Provident
Fund office, The Company is liable for annuat contribution and any shortfall 1o the extent of tha Company's share in the fund managed by
ultimate parent Company, based on the Government specified minimum rates of return and recognises such contributions and shortfatl, i
any, asan expense in the year incurred.




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED] {CIN - UASZCOMH198SPLE050444)
Notes to financial statermnants for the year ended March 31, 2013

{b} Superannuation fund
Contribution to the superannuation fund is made at 15% of basie salary for the employees who hava opted to the scheme, managed by the
ulimate parent Company and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

{2) Defined benefit plans
{a} Gratulty

For defined banefit schemes in the form of gratuity plan, the cost of providing benefits is actuarially determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each year end. The retirerment benefit obligation recognised in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of the defined bensfit obiigation as reduced by the falr value of scheme assets.

The Company have an obligation towards gratuity, post employment/retiremeant defined benefit plan cavering eligible emplayees. The
benefit is in the form of fump sum payments to eligibfe employees on resignation, retirement, or death while in empleymant or on
termination of emplayment of an smount equivalent to 15 days’ to 30 days’ basic salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting
oceurs upon completion of five years of servige, The liability determined basis actuarial valuation is comparad with the fair value of plan
assets and the shortfall or excess is accounted for as a fiability or an asset respactively.

The present value of the said obiigation is determined. by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using market yialds of
government bonds of equivalent term and currency to the liability.

The interest income / [expense} are calcutated by applying the discount rate to the nat defined benefit liability or 2sset. The nat interest
income / {expense) on the net defined benefit tiabllity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the peried in
which they occur, directly in OCL They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in £quity and in the Balance Shaet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligaticn resulting from plan amendments or curtzilments are recognised immediately
in profit or loss as past serviee cost,

{€) Other long term empioyee benefit plans
{1} Defined benefit plans

(a} Compensated absences

The liabiiities for compensated absences are aot expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
amployees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting pericd that have terms approximating 1o the terms of the related
obligation. Remeasurements as 3 result of experience adjustments and ¢hanges in actuarial assumptions are racagnised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss,

{xil} Provisions and Contingent Liahilities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of 2 past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is orobable that an outflow of econamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to the net
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects currant market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present ohligation that arises from past events, where It is either not probable that an outflow of resourcas will be required to settle or a
refiable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent Habllity, Contingent ligbilities are also disclosed when thers is 3
possible obligation arlsing from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-seecurrence of one or
more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of rescurces in settlement is remote, are not disciosed as contingent
Habllities,

{xiii} Dividend (including dividend distribution tax}
Any dividend declared or pald by Company is based on the profits avaitable for distribution as reported in the financial statements. Indian
law mandates that dividend be declared out of distributable profits, after setting off un-provided losses and depradiation of previous years.
in case of inadequacy or absance of profits in a particulur year, a Company may pay dividend out of sccurnulated profits of previous years
transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, In the ahsence of accumulated profits 2 Company may declare dividend out of free
reserves, subject to certzin conditions as prescribed under tha Companies {Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rudes, 2014, Accordingly,
in certain yearstienetincome reported in these financial stataments may not be fully distributable.




TATA MOTGRS FINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED) [CIN - U45200MH1988PLC0O50444)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

[xiv} Segmentrepaorting

{xv}

A

Operating segments are reported in a manner cansistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker.

The power to assess the financial performance and position of the Company and make strategic decisions is vested in the Beard of Directors
Committea who has been identified as the Chief Operating Decisions Maker,

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 2 financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity. Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Finangial agsets

initial recognition and measuramant

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
lass, transaction costs that are attributable Yo the acquisition of the financial asset are added %o the fair value. The fransaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair valug through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, L.2., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considared in their entitety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of printipal and interast.

Subsequent measurament

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are clagsified in the following categories :-
a, at amortised cost, or

b. at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCI), or

¢, at fair value through profit or foss {FVTPL)

The above classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flow,

(1} Debt Instrurnents = .
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s businass madel for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments. ‘

{a) At amortised cost;
A debt nstrument is measured at amortised cost, If both the following conditions are satisfied/ fulfilled

- The asset is held within 3 business model whose objective is to hold assats for collecting contractual cash flows; and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI} on the
principal amount cutstanding.

After initial measurement, such financiaf assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost usiag the effective interest rate {EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by teking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are zn integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss. This category generally applies to loans arising from financing activities and investments.

{b) At FVTOC!:

A debt instrument is classified at FVTOCL, if both of the following criteriz are met:

- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} an the
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FYTOC category are measured initally as well as at each reporting date at fzir value. Fair value
movements are recognised In the OCL Howaver, the Company recognises Interest ingome, irmpairment losses and reversals in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC) is reclassified from the equity to the
Statermant of Profit and Loss, Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR mathod.




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1989PLCO50444)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{c} AL FVTPL:

FVTPLIs a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the griterla for categorisation as at amartized
cost or as FVTOC, is classified as at FVTPL. :

{n addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise maets amortised cost or EVTQC! criteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such elaction is altowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as
‘accounting rmismatch’).

Debt instruments includad within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vatue with all changes recognizad in the Statemant of Profit and
Loss.

Derivatives ambedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope af Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in thair entirety when determining whether their cash flaws are solely payment of principal and interest.

(I Equity Instruments/investments

fnvestments in equity instruments are measurad at fair value, Equity instrurnents, which are held for trading, are classified as at EVTPL. For
equity instruments, other than hald for trading, the Company has irrevocable option to present in OCt subsequent changes In the fair value,
The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recogrition and is irrevocable.

Where the Company classifias equity instruments as at FYTOCI, then il fair value changes on the Instrument, excluding dividends, are
recegnized in the GCI. There is no reeycling of the amcunts from O8I to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with ail changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

{11} Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss mode! for recognising impairment loss on fnancial assets measured at amortised cast, debt
instruments at FVOCL, loans and advances receivables arising eut of the financing activities and trade receivablas,

Loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is measurad at an amount equal to life time expacted credit losses which is computed based
on provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-locking infarmation.

Loss allowance for foans arising out of the financing activity and debt investments measured at amortised cost or FVOCI is measured at an
amount equal to twelve month expected losses if credit risk on such assets has not increased significantly since initial recognition. An
allowance equal to life time expected losses is provided ¥ credit risk has increased significantly from the date of initial recognition. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the iastrument improves, such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since fnitial
recognition, then the Company revests to recognising impairment Joss allowance based on i2-month ECL.

ECLis the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash Hows
that the entity expects to receive [(Le., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity
considers:

1. All contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension, calf and similar options) over the expected life of the
financial instrurment. However, in rare cases, when the expectad life of the financial instrument cannot be estimatad reftably, then the antity
is required o use the remalning contractua! term of the financial instrument

2. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other eredit enhancements that are integra! to the contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allewance {or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost which includes debt investments, loans receivables arising from financing activity and trads
reczivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., ' as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the Balance Sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment aliowance
from the gross carrying amount.

Write-off

Financial assets (and the related Impairment allowances) are normally written off, either partially or in full, when there is no reasonable
expectation of further recovery. In circumstances where the net realisable valus of any c¢ollateral has bean determined and there is no
reasonable expectation-of further recovery, write-off may be earlier.
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{IV) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers tha
fingncial asset and substantially #!l the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to anather party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially alf the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contrel the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated Hability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and ziso recognises an
associated liability as collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference batwaen the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI, and accumulated in eglity is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

financial liabilities and eguity instruments

Classification as debt or aquity
Debt and equity instruments, issuad by the Company, are classified as either financial liabilities or as equlty, in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

1) Finanelal labilities

nitial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised Initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through
prafit ar loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of finsncizl fiabilities are deducted from the fair value of financial
liabilities. The transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of financial Habilities at fair vatue through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in profit or loss.

The Company's financial liabilities majorty comprise of trade and other payables, Ioans and barrowings, including bank overdrafts and cash
credit facility and derivative financial instruments.
Subseguent measurement

Alf financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) method or at fair value through
profit or foss {(FVTPL).

{a} At FVTPL:
Financial fiabilities includes derivative financial instrumants entered inte by the Company that are not designated and effective as hedging

instruments in hedge refationships as defined by ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial Habilities, designated upon initial recogrition at FVTPL, are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and anly if the
criteria in ind AS 109 are satisfied.

{b) At amortised cost:

After Inftial recognition, interest-bzaring loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective |nterest
Rate {EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account sny discount or premium on atquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The £1& amortisation is included in finance costin the profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial Nabilities:

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and orly whan, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The diffarence between the carrying amount of tha financial Hability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
Statament of Profit and Loss.

Modification/Renegotiation that do not result in derecognition

Changes to the carrying amount of a financial liability as a resuit of renegotiation or modification of terms that do not result in
derecognition of the financial iability, is recognised in the Statement of Profitand Lass.

{H) Equity tnstrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets of the Company after deducting alt of its liabilities.

Incremental costs incurred which are directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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{xvi)

{tI) Compound financial Instrument

The components of compound financlal instruments issued by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the centractual arrangements and definitions of a financial fiability and an equity instrument. A
conversion option that will be settled by exchange of fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's
own equily instruments i35 an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing markat interest rate for similar non
convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest rate method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by daducting the amount of liability component from the fair value of the
compound financial instruments as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recegnised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retzined earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instrument are allocated to the Hahility and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of the gross proceeds, Transaction costs relating to the equity cempenent are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs
relating to the hability component are included in the carrying amount of the Hability component and are amortised over the life of the
convartible instrument using effactive interest rate method.

Derivatives and Hedging activities
The Company enters into 3 variaty of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate

risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed
in Note 15,

Derivatlves are initially recognised al fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
thelr fair value at the end of each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in Statement of profit or loss immediately unless
the derivative is designated and effective a3 a hedging instrument (Refer sub note {1} below}, in which event the timing of recognition In
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging refationship and nature of the hedge item.

Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in 2 hast contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embadded derivatives
are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and accordingly, are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closaly related to the host contracts are not saparated,

{a) Hedge accounting
The Company designates foreign currency forward derivative contracts as hedges of foreign exchange risk assoclated with the cash flows of
foreign currency risks associated with the borrowings denominated in foreign currency (referred to as "cash flow hedges"),

The Company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between the hedging instruments and
hedge items Including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hadge items. The Company

documents its risk management objective and strategy for gndertaking various hedge transactions at the inception of the hedging
relationship,

Cash flow hedges

The effectiva pertion of ¢changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is racognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity to effective portion (as described above) are
raciassified to profit or loss in the periods whan the hedga item affects profit or 10ss, in the same line as the recognised hedge item.

In cases where the deslgnated hedging instruments zre forward contracts, the Company has an option, for each designation, to designate
on an instrument only the changes in spot element of forward contracts respectively as hedges. In such cases, the forward element {i.e.
forward premiumy} is accounted based on the type of hedge which those forward contract headge.

The changes in the forward elem Fthe forward contracts are recognised within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging
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(xvit}

{xviii}

[xix}

In case of wansaction refated hedge item in the above cases, the changes in the forward element {i.e. forward premium) of the forward
centracts accumulated within other comprehensive incame in the costs of hedging reserve within equity Is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassifization adjustrment in the same period in which the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

in case of time-period related hedge item in the above cases, the changes in the forward element {i.e. forward premium) of the forward
contracts accumulated within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity is amortised on & systematic and
rational basis over the period during which the forward contracts spat element could affect profit or loss as a reclassification adjustmeant
from other comprehensive income,

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires of Is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting.

Fair value measuremant .

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments and derivatives at fair values at each Balance Sheet date.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price {fair vaiue of the consideration given or
received). Subsaquent to initial recognition, the Company detarmines the fair valus of finandiai instruments that are guoted in active
markets using the quoted bid prices {financial assets hald} or quoted ask prices (financial iiabilities heid) and using valuation techniques for
other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method and other valuation models,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financia! assats and financial liabilities are offset whes it currently has a tegally enforceable right fnot contingant on future avents} to off-set
the recognised amounts and the Company intends either to settla on a net basis, or to reaflse the assets and settle the liabilitias
simultaneously.

New Accounting Prenouacement

{A] New accounting standards not yat adopted

In March 2018, MCA issued ind AS 116 - Leases which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases for both parties ta a contract and replaces the previous standard on leasing, Ind AS 17 -Leases. Ind AS 118, which is not appiicable
to service contracts, but only applicable to leases or lease componeants of a contract, defines a lease as a contract that conveys to the
customer (lessee) the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Ind AS 116 eliminates the dassification of
leases for the lessee as either oparating leases or finance leases as required by Ind AS 116 and instead, introduces a single lessee accounting
madel whereby a lessee is required to recognise assets and liabllitias for ail leases with a term that is greater than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value, and to recognise depreciation of leased assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. As Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements In Ind AS 17, a lessor will continue to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases and to account for those two types of leases differentty.

The Company will be adopting Ind AS 116 with a modified fetrospective approach with effect from April 01, 2019. The cumulative effect of
initially applying this Standard will be recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings, Figures for comparative
periods will not ba restated.

The Company will use the axemption opticn available for existing Jeases and apply the available exemptions regarding the recognition of
short term laases and low value leasing assets. Basis assessment, the Company arrangements under operating leases, which are currently
off Balance sheet, will be recorded as right to use assets and the future obligations in respect of such leases will be recorded as a liability in
the Balance sheet as at April 01, 2019. The Company is evaluating impact of above amendments issued by MCA to existing accounting
standards,

The Company wil! use following practical expedients of Ind AS 116 at the date of initial application:

1) with lzases previously classified as operating leases according to Ind AS 117, the lease Hability will be measured at the present vaiue of
the outstanding lease payments, discounted by the incremental borrowing rate at April 01, 2015. The respective right-of-use asset is
generally recognisad atan amount aqual to the lease llability;

2} An impairment review is not performed for right of use assets. Instead, right-of-use asset is adjusted by the amount of any provision for
onercus leases recognised in the Balance sheet.

3} Regardless of their original lease term, {aases for which tha lease term ends latest on March 31, 2020, are recognised as shortterm
leases;

4} At the date of initial application, the measurement of 3 right-to-use asset excludes the Initial direct costs; and
3} Hindsight is considered when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the leases.
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(8} Amendmaents issued by MCA to existing standards

MCA issued following amendments to certain standards which will be effective from financial year beginning April 01, 2015.

i) Amendments to Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments - Prepayment of ioans:

The amendments notified in Ind A5 109 pertain to classification of a firandial instruments with prepayment feature with negative
compensation. Negative compensation arises where the terms of the contract of the financial instrument permit the holder to make
repayment or permit the lender or issuer to put the instrument to the borrower for repayment before the maturity at an amount i2ss than
the unpaid amounts of principat and interast, Earlier, there was no guidance on classification of such instruments.

According to the amendments, these types of instrumenis can be classified as measursd at amortised cost, or measured at fair value
through profit or loss, or measured at fair value through other comprehensive income By the lender or issuer if the respective coaditions
specified under Ind AS 109 are satisfied. Similarly, the holder may classify them aither measured at fair value through profit or loss or
measured at amartised cost In accordance with conditions of Ind A5 109,

fij Amendments to ind AS 12, Income Taxes - Deferred taxgs on Dividends:

An entity is required to creata a corresponding labitity for payment of Dividend Distribution Tax {DDT) when it recognises a2 lability to pay 2
dividend. The fiability for DDT shal! be recorded in statement of profit & loss, other comprehensive income or equity, as the case may be.
Currently, the Company is fecegnizing dividend distribution tax on dividends paid to shareholders in the statement of changes in equity, As

per the amendment, the Company will recognize dividend distribution tax on dividend distributed to shareholders as income tax expense in
its statement of profit or loss.

i} Amendments te Ind AS 12, Income Taxes - Uncertain tax treatment
Ancther amendment relates to tax consequence of an ftem whose tax treatment is uncertain. Tax treatment of an item is considered as
uncertain when there is uncertainty whether the relevant taxation authority will accept the tax trestment of that item or not. For example,
if an entity has not Included a particular income in taxable profit, it will be considered as uncertain tax treatment if jts acceptability by
taxation authority is uncertain. The amendment has baen brought by introducing a new Appendix C to Ind AS 12,
if there Is uncertainty over tax treatment of an item:

1. An entity should determine an approsch or methed that predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, Based on the approach, the entity
shall determine whether to consider 2ach uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments.

2.1t shall assess whether it is probable that the taxation authority will accept the uncartain tax treatment, assuming that the authority has
full right to examine the treatment and has full knowiedge of all related informaticn.

3. if itis probabie that the taxation authority will accept the tax treatment, there will be no impact on tha amount of taxable profits/iosses;
tax bases, unused tax losses/credits and tax rates. In vice-versa case, the entity shall show the effect of the uncertainty for each uncertain
tax treatment on amount of related aforesaid items by using either the mast likaly outcome or the expected outcome of the uncertainty.

iv) Amendment to Ind AS 19, Emploves Benefits - Changes in Employee benefit plan;

When a change to 2 plan by way of elther an amendment, curtailmeant or settlement takes place, Ind AS 12 requires 8 Company 1o
remeasure its net defined beneflt fability or asset.

The amendments to Ind AS 19 require a Company to use the updated assumptions from this remeasurement ta determine current service
cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan. Until now, ind AS 19 did not specify how to
determine thase expenses for the period after the change to the plan.

v} Amendments to nd AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

nd AS 108 excludas interest in assaciates and joint ventures that are accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 28, Investments in Associates
and Jolnt Ventures from its scope. This amendment to Ind AS 28 clarifies that Ind AS 109 should be applied to financial instruments,
including fong-term interests in agsociates and joint venture, that, in substance, form part of an entlty’s net investiment in associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method is not applied.

The Company is evaluating impact of above amendments issued by MCA to existing accounting standards.
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4 First time adoption- Transition to Ind AS

A. Exemptions and Exceptions availed

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as at April 01, 2017 (the transition date} by racognising all assets and liabilities whose
cecognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP
to Ind AS as required by Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subjeci to the certain
exception and certain optichal exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below.

{A} Business combination

Business ¢ombination prior to April 01, 2016 have been accounted in sccordance with Previous GAAP. Goodwiil arising from business ¢combination has
baen stated at the carrying amount under Previous GAAP.

(8} Derecognition of financial assets

The Company has chosen to apply derecognition criteria retrospectively. Accordingly all securitisation receivablas have been re-recagnised under Ind AS as
at Aprit 01, 2017,

(C} Dasignation of previously recognised #nancial instruments

The Comparny has opted to avail this exemption to designate certain equity investments as FYTOC! ar the date of transition.

B. Reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

a) Equity reconciliation {Rs. in fakhs)

. Asat As at
Particulars Notes i
March 31, 2018 April 61, 2017
Total equity as reported under the Previous GAAP 3728,58.67 3064,36.60
Provision for impairment allowance based on expected credit loss model [ECL} (i} {471,159.48) {636,85.81)
Recogniticn of income {net of expense) on secaritisation and assizgnment transactions {i} 40,80.28 40,44.31
Fair valuation of investments In equity shares through other comprehensive income (ini} 11,74.64 65,4178
Fair valuation of Investments in equity shares and mutual funds through profit or loss i) 51,29.41 61,59.52
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) adjustment for financial instruments [iv} {45,03.08} {14,48.75}
Reversai of goocdwill recognised in Previous GAAP on a common control transactions {1212,34.37) (1212,34.87}
Liability portion of compound financial instrument v} {156,99.76} (100,75.57)
Total equity as per Ind AS 195§,B5.81 1208,52.81
&} Total Comprehensive Income recenciliation {Rs. In fakhs}
. Notas Year anded
Particuiars March 31, 2018
Net profit after tax as reported under previous GAAP 327.58.13
Provision for impairment allowance based on expected credit loss model (ECL) {ii} 165,70.71
Recognition of income [net of expense) on seturitisation and assignment transactions {1} 35.97
Fair valuation of investments in equity shares and mutual funds through profit or loss {iii} {30.11)
Effective Interast Rate (IR} adjustment for financial instruments {iv), (v} {307,83.04}
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans {6,86.79)
Tax effect on the ahove adjustments {wi) 93,44.06
Net profit after tax as per Ind AS 27%,08.93
Other comprehensive income (net of tax affect) {wil) 12,19.65
Total Comprehensive income aftar tax as per Ind AS 284,28.58

¢] Effect of Ind AS adoption on tha Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

Under Ind A5, certain transfer of Joans arising from financing activities by way of securitisation/dicect assignments do not meet the criteria for
derecognition. Consequently, proceeds received from thesa transactions are recorded as collateralized debt obligation. Under Indian GAAP, such
transactions meet the criteria for derecognition and accordingly, recorded as sale. As a result, under Ind AS, the cash fiows from operating activities and
cash outflows from financing activities is higher by Rs. 293,47 lakhs. :

d} Notes to reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

{i) De-recegnition of financial instruments
The Company transfers loans arising from financing activities in securitisation transactions/direct assignments..In such transactions the Company
surrenders control over the receivables though continues to act as an agent for the collection of recaivables. In most of these transactions, the Company
also providas credit enhancem}aﬂtf;p:ghe transferae. Bacause of the existence of credit enhancement in such transactions, under ind AS, such transfer or
assignment doas not meet t 'l"'ﬂie_:r_‘ec‘c_; i'éin;_griteria resulting Into the transaction not being recorded as sale. Consequently, the proceeds received from
the transfer are recorde/gi'a/s:_g:é atef dép obligatian.
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{ii) Provision for impairment allowance based on expected credit loss model (ECL)

lmpairment of lans arising from financing activities is measured at an amount equal to twelve month expected fosses if credit risk on such assets has not
increased significantly since initial recognition. An allawance equal to lifetime expected losses is provided if eredit risks has increased significantly from the
date of initia! recognition.

Undar Previous GAAF, provision for impairment allowance were determined based on RB! guidelines on classification and provisioning norsis.

{iit} Fair valuation of investments

Under Previous GAAP, investrments were classified into current and long term investments. Current investments are carried at the lower of cost or market
value, while long term investments are carried at cost less any impairment that is other than temgporary.

Under Ind AS, quoted and few unquoted equity investments hava been classified as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCN. Fair value
movements are recognized directly in other comprehensive income on such investments. tnvestments in few unguoted equity instruments and Mutual

Funds and units in Trust securities have been classified as Falr value through Profit or Loss {FVTPL) and fair value changes are racognised in Statemant of
Profit and Loss. '

(iv) Effective Interest Rate (EiR) adjustment for financial instrumaents
Under Previous GAAP, the transaction costs were racagnised ix the profit or loss an a straight line basis over the tenure/term of the loans.
Under Ind AS, the transaction costs are included/deducted from the initial carrying armount of the financial assets/financial lizbilities on initial recognition

and recognisad as interest income in the profit or loss by applying the’effective interest rate method le. recognised in the prefit or loss based on an..
effective interast rate derived based on guidance detailad in Ind AS 105,

{v} Recognition of Compound Financial Iastruments
Under previous GAAP, classification is normally based on form rather than substance and there was no reguirement or guidance on split accounting, and
financial instruments were classified as either {fability or equity in entirety, depending on their primary nature.

Under ind AS, compound financial instruments, such as convertibie bonds or convertible praference shares, to be split inta liability and equity
components, and each component to be recognisad separately.

(vi} Deferred taxes
Under previous GAAP, a deferred tax asset s recognised for unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation only to the extent that there is virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be utilised.

Under Ind AS, a deferred tax asset s recognised for the carry farward unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilised. Accordingly as per Ind AS 12, the Company has considered MAT credic
entitlement as deferred tax asset being unused tax credit entitfemeant.

Alsq, income tax impact have been recognised on the various gaap adjustments made above on the transition to Ind AS

{vii) Other Comprehensive income (QCI)
Under Pravious GAAP, there was no concept of OCL. Under Ind AS, income and expensés relating te fair value of gains/{losses) on FVOCH invastments in

equity instruments and re-measurements of post employment defined benefit plan are recognised in OCI. The concept of other comprehensive income did
not exist under previous GAAP.
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Note 5
Cash and cash equivalents
{Zin lakhs)
. As at As at As at
Pacticulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Cash on hand 20,16.18 23,34,47 27,97.78
Balance with Banks 658,70.83 145,81.13 60,46.96
Cheques, drafts on hand 21,52.62 19,90.38 26,50.66
Bank deposit with maturity of less than 3 months - - 100,49.80
Total 700,79.63 189,05.38 215,45.00
Note 6
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
(% in lakhs)
. As at As at As at
Particulars
March 33, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Deposits with banks 500,00.00 300,00.00 500,00.00
Miargin money / cash collateral with banks 477,83.10 145,77.61 73,45.40
Total 977,83.10 645,77.61 573,45.40
Note 7
Trade receivables
{% in lakhs)
. As at As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Receivables considered good - Unsecurad 33,87.67 22,12.93 5,60.86
Total 33,8767 22,1293 5,60.96

Mo trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, Nor any trada
or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectivaly in which any directoris a partner, g director or 8 member.

Note 8
Other receivables
{% in lakhs)
; As at As at As at
Particulars e
< March 31, 2019 tarch 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 8,50.80 1,53.56 7,35.37
Total i 8,90.80 1,53.56 7,35.37

Mo other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any cther person. Nor any other

receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any directeris a pariner,

a director or a member,

Note 9
Loans
(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2618 April 01, 2017
At amortised cost
From Financing Activities
« Term loans 30776,80.45 22438,00.97 17714,11.03
Total (A} - Gross 30776,80.45 22438,00.97 17714,11,03
Less: Impairment loss allowzance {781,23.65) {894,21.12} (1232,25.05)
Total (A) - Net - 29935,56,80 21543,79.85 16481,85.98
(8}
Secured by tangible assets# 30774,40,53 22438,00,57 17713,71.68
Unsecured 2,39.92 - 39.35
Total (B} - Gross 30776,80.45 22438,00.97 17714,11.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance (781,23.65) (894,21.12) (1232,25.05)
Total (B] « Net 29895,56.80 21543,73,85 16481,85.98
{c)
Loans in India
- Public Sector - . R
- Qthars 30776,80.45 22438,00,57 17714,11.03
Total {C) - Gross 30776,80.45 22438,00.97 17714,11.03
Less: Impairment {oss allowance v {781,23.55) 894,21.12} {1232,25.05}
Total {C) - Net h \ 29995,56.80 21543,79.85 16481,85,98
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LEMITED) (CIN - U45200MHLIEIPLC050444)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018

Annexure te Note 10

{%in lakhs}
Face Value Quantity As at, Quantity As at Quantity As at
per unit {in Description {in nox.} as at March 31, {innos.}asat Warch 31, {in nos.) as at Aprii 01,
Rs} March 31, 2019 2018 Marsh 31, 2018 2018 April 01, 2017 017
investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
inceme
Investment in equity shares
{a} Quotad
16 Tata Steel Limited 5,70,188 29,70.68 570,188 32,55.20 4,981,542 23,7243
10 Tata Steel Limited {partly paid upto Rs. 2.5 per share} 39,323 25.25 38,323 55.56 - -
10 Tata Chernicals Limited 10,050 58.23 10,050 63.08 10,060 50.24
1 Tata Power Limited 9,120 673 8,120 7.24 9,120 8.25
2 ICICT Bank Lirited - - - - 1,57,300 4,3587
finctuding 500 equity shares received as bonus during the period Tn
the ratio of 1:10) :
10 NTPC Liemited 1,30,000 2,10.13 1,230,000 2,20.60 1,95752 3,24.86
1 NMDC Limited 20,000 2089 20,000 23.73 7,58,369 3,43.39
10 Coal india Limited 11,904 28.24 11,904 33.75 91,904 2,69.02
5 Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited B - - - 21,675 40.11
1 Coigate-Patmolive {India) Umited - - - - 9,650 95.73
2 HDFC Bank Limited - - - - 4,000 57.6%
1 State Bank of India - - - - 26,280 76.90
1 Aurabindp Pharma Limitad - - - - 18,930 127.81
{b} Unquotad - Group Companies
10 Taj Air Limited 42,00,000 - 42,400,000 - 42,00,000 -
1,000 Tats international timited 18,350 24,2630 15,350 15,55.60 19,350 15,55.60
100 Tata Industries Umited 9,93,753 20,50.00 2,983,753 20,50.00 9,93,753 20,50.00
Subtotal {a) 77,97.44 72,69.76 78,18.47
investmeants measured at fair value through profit and foss
investment in equity shares
{a} Quoted
10 Automobile Corporation of Goa Umited 48,315 2,70.54 48,315 5.38.93 48,315 3,05.83
{b} Unquoted
10 Tata Technologies Limited 8,11,982 73,40.41 8,111,992 £8,99.37 8,11,592 £9,95,37
+70.0 85,714 1,70. 2,85,714 1,70
10 Tata Hitachi Construction Machinery Company Privata Uimited 2,85,714 ! g L85 ,Ll 0.06 85,71 6.00
Investment in trust securities (partly paid)
10 581 Macguarie Infrastructure Trust 1,50,00,000 19,48.45 1,50,00,000 18,34.50 150,080,000 16,47.00
{Partly paid upto Rs 8.43 {at March 31, 2018: Rs 8.32 per unit, Aprii
01, 2017 Rs 8,39 per unit)
Investrnent in mutual funds {Unquoted)
19 Tata Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - - - - - 3.738.10
Subtatal {h) 47,29.40 95,42.80 188,60.30
Investments measured at Amortised cost '
Investmentin Preferenca shares
Fully Paid Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares
{Unquoted} .
100 6% Tata Preciston Industries (India) Umited 40,000 40.00 40,000 40.00 40,000 40.00
Fully Paid Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares [Unguoted)
160 8.50% Tata Precision Industries {india} Limited 150,000 1,50.00 150,000 1,50.00 1,506,000 1,50.00
fully Paldd Cumulative Redeamable Non Participating Preference
shares {unguated)
1,000 12.50% Tata Capital Limited 6,665 99.98 6,665 95,58 5,665 99.88
Investments i Dahentures and Bonds
{a) Quoted
Fully Paid Secured, Non - Cumulative, Mon - Convertible,
Redeemable Dabentures
1250 8.45% NTPC Limited (issued as bonus) 2,75,752 - 2,75,752 - 2,758,752 -
{b} Unguected
Fully Paid Secured Redeemable Nan - Convertible Debentures
100 10% Tata Preclsion Industries (Indiz} Limited e 3,50,000 3,50.00 3,506,000 3,50.00 3,508,000 3,50.00
o,
P
Fully Paid Secured Compulserily Convertible Qe)bg/ﬁflf}?esf -
1,00,00,000 10% R58 Transmissions {1} Limited ; Lo 116 110,00.60 - - - B
Investment in trust securities (Unquoted)
Pass through certificates 298,31.52 R _
Total 414,71.50 5,39.98 6,39.98
Less: Provision for dimin 1,14.55 . .
Subtotal {¢) 413,56.95 £,39.98 6,39.98
Total{a+ b +¢) 588,83.79 174,523,549 273,18.75




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as SHEBA PROPERTIES LIMITED} {CIN « U45200MH1989PLC050444)

Notes forming part of financiai statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

11 Note il
Qthar financial assets
{Xin lakhs}
K As at Asat Asat
Pa la
fticulars March31,2019 | March 31,2018 | April 91, 2017
Depasits {Net of provision of Rs, 25.24 lakhs; March 31, 2018 Rs 31.57 lakhs, Aprii 01,
8,11, .65 .38,
2017 85 36.52 lakhs) 32 10,35.65 98812
toterest aceruad on deposits and investments 15,01.37 4,69.44 4,37.56
Receivable from mutual funds - - 1,36.20
Application money receivable towards securities 114,44.18 - -
Others {Net of grovision of Rs, 16,64 fakhs; March 31, 2018 Rs NH; April G, 2017 &s Nil) 33,50 3,53.18 6,13.35
Total 138,90.37 18,5827 | 71.85.23 |
12 Note 12
Income taxes
a) income tax expense recognised in statement of profit or loss
{%inlakhs]
Particulars Yearended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Intome tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year . .
Adjustments for current tax of priar periods - {18,99.46}
Total current tax exgpense - {18,99.46)

Deferred tax
Decrease {increase) in deferred tax assats

24,3063 (175,91.81)
({Decrease) increase in deferred tax liahilitias {30,30.68) 135,42.46
Tota! deferred tax expense/{benefit) {6,600.00) (44,49.35)
Income Tax expense {6,600.00] (63,48.81}
b) Reconciliation of tha income tax expenses and accounting profit
Reconciliation of the Income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:
[T in jakhs]
Particutacs Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit before taxes 137,87.65 208,60.12
Income tax expenses calculated at 34,344% {previous year - 34.608%) 48,17.96 72,19.27
Tax effect of the amount which are not taxable in calculating taxable income :
- Effect of income that is exermnpt from taxation {1,24.78} 1,11.10
- Effect of expenses nét deductible for tax computation 6,65.30 43.20
-impact of change in statutary tax rates 1,08.85
- Deferred tax assets not recognised becayse realization is not probable 70,56.68 83,07.22
- Previously unrecognised and unused tax losses now utilisad {124,25.16) {221,38.50)
- Deferred tax asset now creatad on previzusly unrecognised and unused tax losses {65,00.00) -
Income tax expensef{credit] recognised for the year at effective tax rate {6,600.00} (s,;as.ani
¢j Deferrad tax assets/liabilities {net)
Significant components of deferred tax assets and fabilities for the year anded March 31, 2019 are as follows:
{% in lakhs}
Cha
Particulars . Asat * (:redi:zz‘]i{a Chargad/ As at
April 1, 2018 {credited} to OCI March 31, 2019
profit and foss
Deferred tax labititips :
- Pmpe_rt\,_f, plant & ee_qui?ment & intangibie assets- Accumnulated 108,66.46 (108.66.45) B R
depreciationfAmortisation
- Fair Valustion of Equity Instruments measured at FVTOC and } €792 ) 57.97
FVTPL
- Sourcing commission claimed on Incurrence basls 26,76.00 17,77.86 44,53.86
Total deferrad tax lizbilities 135,42.46 90,36.68) - 45,1178
Deferred tax asset ©
- Unai:-s-or'beri and unused tax losses and unabserbed ) 56,00.00 56,00.00
depreciation
- Expenges deductible in future years:
Provisions for Impalrment allowances on financial 137,10.05 (52,12.83) : 24.97.22
assets
Compensated absences arfd retivem . 3,58.04 95,38 B 4,63.92
attowabia on payment basls
- Others e 39,1372 (39,1372} - -
Total deferred tax assets s 179,91.83 [24,30.68} - 155,61.14
Net deferred tax asset/{liahilities} excl MAY Crédit’ MY 44,29.37 §6,00.00 - 11.0,49.36
- Minimum alternate tax (MAT) entitlement =50 0 S 64,8183 - - 54,81.83
Deferred tax assets/{liabilitias) {nat), o i 109,31.20 6,600.00 - 175,319
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (formerly known as SHEBA PRGPERTIES LIMITED) {CIN - U4SZ00MH1925PLCO50444)
MNotes forming part of financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2018 are 25 follows:

{% in lakhs)

Partleuiars

Ag ér.
Aprit 1, 2017

Charged/
[credited) to
profit and {oss

Charged/
[credited) to Other
Comprehensive
income

As at
March 31, 20138

Leferred tax liabilities :
- Property, plant & equipment & Intangible assats- Agcurmnulated

d} Amounts recognised directly in equity

Ne aggregate amounts of current and deferrad tax have arisen in the re

other comprehensive income but directly debited/ {cradited) to equity

e} Tax losses
As at March 31, 2019, unrecognized deferred tax assets amount to Rs. 168,94,

depreciation carry forwards. The deferred tax asset has not been recognized
futura.

X o 108,66.46 108,85.46

dapreciation/Amortisation - “
- Others - 26,76.00 - 26,76.00
Total deferred tax Habhilities - 135,42.46 - 135,52.46
Deferred tax assat :
- Expenses deductible in future years:

Provisions for impairment allowances an financial ) 137.10.05 ) 137,10.05

assers

Compensated absences arjd retirement baneaflits ) 3.68.04 i 1.68.04

altowabfe on payment basis
- Others - 39,13.72 . 39,13.72
Total deferred tax assets - 179,91.81 - 179,91.81
Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities) excl MAT Credit . 44,4535 - 44,49.35
- Minimum alternate tax {MATY) entitlement - £4,81.83 - 64,81.83
Defarred tax assats/{Habilities) {net) - 108,31.18 - 189,31.18

porting periods which have not been recognised in nat profit or loss or

54 lakhs which can be carried forward indefinitely. These relate to
on the basis that its recovery is not probable in the foreseazble
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